MINUTES OF THE WAVERLEY TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MEETING HELD AT WAVERLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CNR PAUL STREET AND BONDI ROAD, BONDI JUNCTION ON THURSDAY, 22 AUGUST 2019



Voting Members Present:

Cr J Wakefield Waverley Council (Chair)

Cr T Kay Waverley Council (Alternate Chair)

Sgt L Barrett NSW Police – Eastern Suburbs Police Area Command – Traffic Services

Mr B Borger Roads and Maritime Services – Network and Safety Officer (South East Precinct)

Mr P Pearce Representing Marjorie O'Neill, MP, Member for Coogee Ms J Zin Representing Gabrielle Upton, MP, Member for Vaucluse

Also Present:

Snr Cst A Birchansky NSW Police – Eastern Suburbs Police Area Command – Traffic Services

Mr B Gidies State Transit – Traffic and Services Manager (Eastern Region)
Mr D Joannides Waverley Council – Executive Manager, Creating Waverley
Mr G Garnsey Waverley Council – Manager, Transport and Development

Mr K Mowad Waverley Council – Senior Traffic Engineer

Mr C Yabuka Waverley Council – Manager, Strategic Transport

At the commencement of proceedings at 10.02 am, those present were as listed above.

At 12.00 pm, Cr Wakefield relinquished the chair, left the meeting and did not return. Cr Kay assumed the chair for the remainder of the meeting.

Apologies

There were no apologies.

Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

The Chair called for declarations of interest and the following was received:

1. Cr Kay declared a less than significant non-pecuniary interest in Item TC/V.03/19.08 – Seven Ways, Bondi Beach – Public Domain Upgrade Project, and informed the meeting that he lives less than 200 m from the subject site.

Adoption of Previous Minutes by Council - 25 July 2019

The recommendations contained in Part 1 – Matters Proposing that Council Exercise its Delegated Functions – of the minutes of the Waverley Traffic Committee meeting held on 25 July 2019 were adopted by Council at its meeting on 20 August 2019, with the following change:

1. TC/C.01/19.07 – Arden Street, Bronte – Macpherson Street to Varna Street – Safety Review and Concept Design.

The Traffic Committee's recommendation was adopted subject to referring the proposal to the relevant Council team for soft surface beautification.

PART 1 – MATTERS PROPOSING THAT COUNCIL EXERCISE ITS DELEGATED FUNCTIONS

NOTE: The matters listed under this part of the agenda propose that Council either does or does not exercise the traffic related functions delegated to it by the RMS. The recommendations made by the Committee under this part of the agenda will be submitted to Council for adoption.

TC/C STATE ELECTORATE OF COOGEE

TC/C.01/19.08 Ocean Street (South), Bondi - Kerb Blisters (A03/0042-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council approves the installation of kerb blisters and associated changes to line marking and signage on both sides of Ocean Street (South) immediately north of the intersection with Birrell Street, Bondi, as per Drawing 9004 Issue A attached to this report.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, RMS representative and Waverley Council representative (Alternate Chair).

TC/C.02/19.08 Bronte Road, Queens Park - 'P15 Minute' Parking (A03/0042-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs a 5.5 m long 'P15 Minute 8.00am-6.00pm' zone immediately north of the driveway to 141 Bronte Road, Queens Park.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, RMS representative and Waverley Council representative (Alternate Chair).

TC/C.03/19.08 Multiple Streets - 'No Stopping' Zones (A02/0637-02)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs 'No Stopping' zones as follows at the following intersections:

- 1. Newland Lane and Manning Street, Queens Park:
 - (a) On the southern side of Newland Lane 10m east of Manning Street.
- 2. Newland Lane and Cuthbert Street, Queens Park:
 - (a) On the eastern side of Newland Lane 8.5m south of Cuthbert Street terminating at the driveway at the rear of No. 1 Manning Street.
 - (b) On the southern side of Cuthbert Street 10m east of Newland Lane.
- 3. Cuthbert Street and Stanley Street, Queens Park:
 - (a) On the northern side of Cuthbert Street 10m west of Stanley Street.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, RMS representative and Waverley Council representative (Alternate Chair).

TC/C.04/19.08 Denison Street, Bondi Junction - Temporary Closure for Tower Crane Dismantling (A19/0394)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That:

- Council approves the temporary closure of Denison Street between Oxford Street and Spring Street between 4am and 9pm (crane to start setting up from 5am) on Sunday 15 September in accordance with the "Traffic Control Plan – Tower Crane Dismantle – Road Closure" drawn by Commercial TC dated 31 July 2018.
- 2. Council approves the removal of all parking spaces in Denison Street between Oxford Street and Spring Street to facilitate the manoeuvring of semi-trailers into the crane lift area.
- 3. Council delegate's authority to the Executive Manager, Creating Waverley to approve any backup date and times for the temporary closure of Denison Street between Oxford Street and Spring Street if required.
- 4. Businesses and residents affected by the closure and emergency services be notified of the closure in writing by the applicant not less than seven (7) days prior to the road closure.
- 5. A copy of the notification letter be forwarded to the Senior Traffic Engineer for approval prior to distribution.
- 6. A Council compliance officer be present for the duration of the works at the applicant's expense and that this be communicated to the applicant.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, RMS representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

A Hafda (on behalf of Parkview Constructions) addressed the meeting.

TC/C.05/19.08 Bondi Junction Cycleway and Streetscape Upgrade - Signage and Linemarking Plans (A14/0193)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council approves signage and line marking drawings L501 to L515 Issue "1" dated 19 July 2019 prepared by Spackman Mossop Michaels, and drawings P2966 Sheets 1-2, 100-100 Issue "3" dated 13 August 2019 prepared by Bitzios Consulting for the Bondi Junction Cycleway and Streetscape Upgrade project as attached to this report.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted, subject to being amended to read as follows:

That Council:

- Approves signage and line marking drawings L501 to L515 Issue "1" dated 19 July 2019 prepared by Spackman Mossop Michaels, and drawings P2966 Sheets 1-2, 100-110 Issue "3" dated 13 August 2019 prepared by Bitzios Consulting for the Bondi Junction Cycleway and Streetscape Upgrade project as attached to this report, subject to:
 - (a) Changes recorded by the Executive Manager, Creating Waverley on plans in the attachments to this report.
 - (b) Clarification of 'give way' signs at the intersections of Ruthven Street and Mill Hill Road with Oxford Street.
 - (c) The installation of 'dismount' signs at the crossing at the intersection of Nelson and Oxford Streets.
 - (d) Clarification and any necessary changes to regulatory signage at the intersections of Bronte Road and Oxford Street and Bronte Road and Spring Street.
- 2. Notes that there will be additional signage and surface treatments at the entrances to Oxford Street Mall.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, RMS representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V STATE ELECTORATE OF VAUCLUSE

TC/V.01/19.08 Wellington Street, Bondi - Changes to Median Island near Edward Street. (A03/0042-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council approves the changes to the existing median island, line marking, signage and pavement on Wellington Street immediately south of and at the intersection with Edward Street, Bondi as per Drawing No. 9003 Issue B attached to this report.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, RMS representative and Waverley Council representative (Alternate Chair).

TC/V.02/19.08 Old South Head Road, Bondi Junction - Bondi Road to Bon Accord Avenue - Shared Path Upgrade (SF19/3435)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs updated pavement markers and new planting on the shared path along Old South Head Road between Bondi Road and Bon Accord Avenue as per Rev "G" drawings L101, L102 and L103 prepared by Spackman Mossop Michaels contained in Attachment 1 to this report which are consistent with the pavement markers already installed along the Old South Head Road shared path at Bondi Road between Bon Accord Avenue and Victoria Street.
- 2. Notes changing the red light and speed sign from two poles to one pole is subject to RMS approval.
- 3. Notes the intention to remove the concrete islands at the Paul Street intersection with Old South Head Road and replace with continuous footpath subject to RMS and future Traffic Committee approval.
- 4. Notes the intention to install continuous footpath or alternative traffic calming at the intersection of Bon Accord Avenue and Old South Head Road subject to RMS and future Traffic Committee approval.
- 5. Notes original concept design and responses relating to existing shared path for community consultation in January/February 2017 for Old South Head Road shared path upgrade (Attachments 3, 4, and 5).

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to clause 1 being amended to include 'subject to the provision of signage to indicate the end of the shared path' at the end of the clause.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, RMS representative and Waverley Council representative (Alternate Chair).

TC/V.03/19.08 Seven Ways, Bondi Beach - Public Domain Upgrade Project (A03/0042-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. In accordance with Drawing No. L-161 dated 9 August 2018 attached to this report, approves:
 - (a) The closure of Warners Lane to vehicular traffic and removal of the vehicular crossings/driveways at its Glenayr Avenue and Blair Street ends.
 - (b) The loss of four parking spaces from Warners Lane.
 - (c) The gain of one new parking space on Blair Street as a result of the closure of the driveway on Warners Lane at its western end.
 - (d) The loss of one on street parking space on the southern side of Blair Street east of Glenayr Avenue to allow for the installation of a kerb blister to improve pedestrian access and safety.
- 2. Installs four timed parking spaces on the north eastern side of Glenayr Lane.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to the additional requirement that Council submits a Traffic Management Plan for the closure of Warners Lane to RMS.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, RMS representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.04/19.08 Hardy Street, North Bondi - Changes to "No Parking" Zone (A02/0637-02)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council approves the relocation of the existing "No Parking" (arrow left) from the southern side of the driveway to No.31 Hardy Street, North Bondi to the southern side of the driveway at No. 33 Hardy Street.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, RMS representative and Waverley Council representative (Alternate Chair).

TC/CV ELECTORATES OF COOGEE AND VAUCLUSE

TC/CV.01/19.08 Accessible Parking in Kenneth Street and Marks Lane, Tamarama (A05/1638)

This item was listed on the agenda under the Electorates of Coogee and Vaucluse in error. The item only relates to the State Electorate of Coogee.

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 6.7m long, 'P DISABILITY ONLY' parallel parking space on the flat crest of Marks Lane opposite No. 91 Fletcher Street, as shown in Figure 1 and attached plan.
- 2. Installs a double 2.4m wide 'P DISABILITY ONLY' 90 degree angle parking space with 2.4m wide shared area outside No. 23 Kenneth Street, as shown in Figure 2 and attached plan.
- 3. Installs 'No Stopping' yellow lines to new 2x pram ramps along Marks Lane and attached plan.
- 4. Removes the existing 'No Stopping' yellow lines to 2x removed pram ramps along Marks Lane and attached plan.
- 5. Installs a 'No Stopping' sign to existing pram ramp on the corner of Marks Lane and Fletcher Street and attached plan.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted, subject to clause 3 being amended to include 'and signage' after 'yellow lines' and typographical errors being corrected, such that the Proposal reads as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 6.7m long, 'P DISABILITY ONLY' parallel parking space on the flat crest of Marks Lane opposite No. 91 Fletcher Street, as shown in Figure 1 on the attached plan.
- 2. Installs a double 2.4m wide 'P DISABILITY ONLY' 90 degree angle parking space with 2.4m wide shared area outside No. 23 Kenneth Street, as shown in Figure 2 on the attached plan.
- 3. Installs 'No Stopping' yellow lines and signage to new 2x pram ramps along Marks Lane as shown on the attached plan.
- 4. Removes the existing 'No Stopping' yellow lines to 2x removed pram ramps along Marks Lane as shown on the attached plan.
- 5. Installs a 'No Stopping' sign to existing pram ramp on the corner of Marks Lane and Fletcher Street as shown on the attached plan.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, RMS representative and Waverley Council representative (Alternate Chair).

TC/CV.02/19.08 Sculpture by the Sea 2019 - Special Event - Transport Management Plan (A19/0394)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council approves the traffic and transport arrangements for the Sculpture by the Sea 2019 Special Event as per the attached Transport Management Plan, subject to the following conditions:

1. Council must:

- (a) Forward the Transport Management Plan (TMP) to the RMS for TfNSW approval of the temporary closures and implementation of one-way movements.
- (b) Undertake the Traffic Control for the event.
- (c) Develop and implement a Communications Strategy, in conjunction with the Event Organiser, to notify the local residents of the changes to traffic conditions.

2. The Event Organiser must:

- (a) Provide an Event Management Plan to Council's events team for approval at least four (4) weeks prior to the event including public liability insurance for the event.
- (b) Apply for crane permits.
- 3. The Executive Manager, Creating Waverley be delegated authority to:
 - (a) Inspect the TMP.
 - (b) Audit the implementation of the TMP.
 - (c) Cancel this approval, without notice or refund.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, RMS representative and Waverley Council representative (Alternate Chair).

TC/CV.03/19.08 Multiple Streets- P Disability Zones (A18/0719)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 5.5m long "P Disability Only" zone outside 10 Ebley Street, Bondi Junction immediately east of the "No Stopping" zone at the driveway to the Waverley Council Library.
- 2. Installs a 5.5m long "P Disability Only" zone outside 370 Military Road, Vaucluse immediately west of the driveway to the property.
- 3. Removes the existing "P Disability Only" zone outside 84 Ruthven Street, Bondi Junction.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, RMS representative and Waverley Council representative (Alternate Chair).

PART 2 – TRAFFIC ENGINEERING ADVICE

NOTE: The matters listed under this part of the agenda seek the advice of the WTC only and do not propose that Council exercise its delegated functions at this point in time (though they may or may not require it in the future).

TC/TEAC STATE ELECTORATE OF COOGEE

Nil.

TC/TEAV STATE ELECTORATE OF VAUCLUSE

Nil.

TC/TEACV ELECTORATES OF COOGEE AND VAUCLUSE

Nil.

THE MEETING CLOSED AT 12.35 PM.

SIGNED AND CONFIRMED

MAYOR

17 SEPTEMBER 2019